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DEE JASPAR & ASSOCIATES, INC.   
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS   
2730 UNICORN ROAD, BLDG A 
BAKERSFIELD, CA  93308    
PHONE (661) 393-4796    
FAX (661) 393-4799    
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 
 

PREPARED FOR:   Jonnie Allison, General Manager 
c/o Frazier Park Public Utility District 
4020 Park Drive 
Frazier Park, CA  93225 

 
 PREPARED BY: Curtis Skaggs, P.E. 

    Dee Jaspar & Associates, Inc. 
    2730 Unicorn Road, Bldg A 
    Bakersfield, CA  93308 
 
 DATE:    July 24, 2023 
 

PROJECT:  Well No. 5 Replacement Project (Well No. 7) 
 
SUBJECT:        Contract Termination and Final Costs 

   
 

I. Introduction 
 

The Well No. 5 Replacement Project (Well No. 7) was awarded to Unified Field 
Services Corporation in the amount of $1,077,392.00.  This work included the well 
drilling, construction, and development as well as the equipping of the new well with 
pump, motor, discharge piping, well building enclosure, and electrical. 
 
A contract change order (CO #1) was issued in the amount of $128,444.14 upon the 
completion of the well drilling.  The purpose of the change order was to reconcile 
differences in bid quantities based on actual field conditions encountered during 
drilling.  This included an increase in the depth of hole drilled, an increase in the 
amount of well casing, an increase in the amount of gravel and sounding tubes, an 
increase in the amount of gravel pack and cement annular seal, an increase in the 
amount of time for well development, and an increase in cost for chemical addition.  
The revised contract amount is therefore, $1,205,836.14. 
 
However, upon completion of the well development and review of the water quality 
results it was determined that a well could not be completed at this location.  The well 
could not support a sufficient safe well yield and the water quality indicated 
exceedances of the maximum contaminant level for fluoride, iron, and manganese.  
Therefore, it was recommended that the well not be equipped and that the well be 
abandoned. 
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II. Remaining Work 
 

The remaining work to be completed includes the following: 
 

1. Abandon Well No. 7 by filling with cement and capping in accordance  
with the County of Kern well destruction guidelines. 
 

2. Restore the site fencing that was removed and final work site cleanup. 
 
III. Contract Termination Costs 

 
The remaining contract costs include costs for the remaining work noted above, for 
materials already purchased and acquired, and for project management and overhead 
costs. 
 

1. Remaining Work Costs 
 

The remaining work includes the abandonment of Well No. 7 in accordance with 
County of Kern well destruction guidelines and the restoration of chainlink 
fencing that was removed to drill the well. 
 
Unified Field Services Corporation has provided a cost of $51,985.00 to complete 
the remaining work. 
 
2. Material Costs 

 
Some materials have already been purchased and delivered and cannot be 
returned.  These costs and the materials are summarized below and supported by 
the attached back-up documentation: 

 
Supplier/Subcontractor Material Cost  Item Description 
Ferguson Waterworks  $18,160.75  Valves, Bolts, Nuts, Gaskets 

        Eyewash, Injection Quill,  
      PVC Pipe, Pipe Supports,  

Pressure Gauges, etc. 
 

Journey Air Conditioning $9,177.00  Well Bldg Enclosure AC  
Unit, Grills, Wall Sleeves, 
Thermostat & Louvers 

 
    Subtotal: $27,337.75 
 

These materials will become the property of the District and may be utilized as 
part of the future well projects.  It is recommended that the District take inventory 
of these materials and store them in a secure location prior to making final 
payment. 
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3. Project Management Costs 
 
The project started back in May 2022.  During the last fourteen months costs have 
been incurred related to project submittals, management of subcontractors, 
processing of progress payments and project costs, compliance with DIR, etc.  
These costs are summarized below and supported by the attached back-up 
documentation: 
 
Contractor/Subcontractor Cost   Item Description 
Bakersfield Well & Pump $1,600.00  Submittals and Overhead 
 
California Pipe Fabricators $3,866.90  Submittals and Overhead 
 
Journey Air Conditioning $350.00  Submittals and Overhead 
 
Northern United Fence $877.86  Submittals and Overhead 
 
P&J Electric, Inc.  $5,974.93  Submittals and Overhead 
 
Tuff Shed   $340.00  Submittals and Overhead 
 
Walter Mortensen Ins.  $10,821.00  Insurance 
 
Wm. B. Saleh   $1,400.00  Submittals and Overhead 

 
Unified Field Services $60,481.56  Submittals, DIR, Progress  

Payments, Overhead 
 
  Subtotal: $85,712.25 

 
IV. Summary 
 
The total revised contract amount including Change Order No. 1 is $1,205,836.14.   
 
Three Progress Payments have been paid and are summarized below: 
 
Progress Payment   Total Amount  Retention Amount Paid 
 
#1 – September 2022  $123,120.00  $6,156.00 $116,964.00 
 
#2 – October 2022  $215,177.00  $10,758.85 $204,418.15 
 
#3 – January 2023  $342,059.14  $17,102.96 $324,956.18 
 

Subtotals:  $680,356.14  $34,017.81 $646,338.33 
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It is recommended that upon approval and completion of the remaining work noted above 
and acceptance by the District that a final payment in the amount of $199,052.81 be made 
to Unified Field Services Corporation. 
 
 
Progress Payment #1, #2, & #3 Retention:  $34,017.81 
 
Remaining Work Cost:    $51,985.00 
 
Purchased Material Cost:    $27,337.75 
 
Project Management/Admin Costs:   $85,712.25 
 

Total:    $199,052.81 
 

 
The final contract price is $845,391.14.   
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